
 
 

RENEWAL AND RECREATION  
POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
BECKENHAM TOWN CENTRE WORKING GROUP 

 
Meeting to be held at 7.30 pm on Thursday 17 March 2016 at  

Beckenham Library, Beckenham, BR3 4PE* 
 

*PLEASE NOTE STARTING TIME 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1  
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

2  
  

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10TH DECEMBER 2015. (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

3  
  

SUMMARY OF ACTION POINTS FROM THE MEETING ON 10TH DECEMBER 2015 
(Pages 13 - 14) 
 

4  
  

TRAFFIC UPDATE (Pages 15 - 28) 
 

5  
  

DAVID BOWIE MEMORIAL  
 

6  
  

MAJOR SCHEME UPDATE (Pages 29 - 30) 
 

7  
  

TOWN TEAM UPDATE AND PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS GOING 
FORWARD  
 

8  
  

PURPLE FLAG AWARD (Pages 31 - 32) 
 

9  
  

BECKENHAM JUNCTION STATION UPDATE  
 

10   ARTICLE 4 UPDATE  

 There will be a written update which is To Follow.   
 

11  
  

ANY OTHER BUSINESS-PREVIOUSLY NOTIFIED  
 

12   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 The date of the next meeting is to be confirmed.   
 

 



 
 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

Stephen Wood 
LBB Democratic Services Manager 
10 March 2016 
020 8313 4316 
stephen.wood@bromley.gov.uk 



1 
 

RENEWAL AND RECREATION  
POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
BECKENHAM TOWN CENTRE WORKING GROUP 

 
Minutes of the meeting held at 7.30 pm on 10 December 2015 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Michael Tickner (Chairman) 
 
Councillors Alan Collins, Ian Dunn, Sarah Phillips, and Stephen Wells 
 
Marsha Berg, (Beckenham Business Association) 
Jackie Groundsell (Chair, Beckenham Business Association) 
Pam Notcutt, (Beckenham Society) 
Alan Old, (Copers Cope Area Residents Association)  
Dr John Parker, (Beckenham Society) 
Steven Parkin, (Copers Cope Area Residents Association) 
Marie Pender, (West Beckenham Residents Association) 
Janice Pilgrim, (Kent Association for the Blind) 
Peter Rice (Beckenham Cricket Specialists) 
Manda Warner (Creases) 
David Wood, (Beckenham Civic Society) 
  
Stephen Wood, (LBB Committee Clerk) 
 
 

 
Also present: 
 

Paul Brown (Kelsey and Eden Park Conservatives) 
Chris Cole, (LBB Environment & Community Services) 
Councillor Alan Collins 
Cheryl Curr, (LBB Environment & Community Services) 
Councillor Ian Dunn 
Kevin Munnelly, (LBB Regeneration & Transformation Service) 
Stephen Oliver, Regeneration & Transformation Service 
Councillor Sarah Phillips 
Councillor Stephen Wells 
Terry Stanley (Beckenham Resident) 
Sue Woodward (Beckenham Resident) 
 

 

24   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Chloe Jane Ross, Gail 
Low, Julian Lewis, Jean Appleton, and Cllr Vanessa Allen. 
 

25   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 15TH 
OCTOBER 2015 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 
 

2 

 The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed. It was also 
agreed that the suggested amendments to these minutes sent to the 
Committee Clerk subsequent to publication (by Nick Goy), would be 
looked at and possibly incorporated in due course. 

26   UPDATE ON PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 The update on Public Realm improvements was provided jointly by 
Kevin Munnelly and Stephen Oliver. 
 
LBB was pressing ahead with the detailed design in conjunction with 
FM Conway. The final detailed design was estimated to be 
completed by the end of March 2016. The final design would then be 
looked at by LBB and TfL for authorisation to proceed; further joint 
consultation would take place as required. The final design for the 
Public Realm would also incorporate the final plans for Beckenham 
Green. 
 
Stephen Oliver informed the Working Group that pavement samples 
had been agreed, and were going to be laid after Christmas. It was 
anticipated that a sample laying schedule would commence during 
the second week of January in the vicinity of Kelsey Square. This 
would afford the Working Group the opportunity to look at red brick 
and granite grey kerbing and note how this would look. The 
Chairman commented that he would like to see sample paving also 
laid at the Albemarle Road Junction. 
 
Mr Munnelly explained that it was standard practice for a sample of 
new style paving to be laid and then viewed by the public. Feedback 
would be encouraged, and a separate email account would be set 
up to receive comments. Cleanliness and durability would be two 
very important factors, and it would need to be ascertained if an 
enhanced or reduced cleaning regime was required. Marie Pender 
requested that a postal address be set up for responses as well as 
an email account, as not everyone used email. 
 
Mr Nick Goy asked if the current cost of the plans was the same as 
those outlined at the Citygate Exhibition in March 2015. He 
expressed the view that the updated version of the plans should be 
made available to the Working Group so that comments could be 
made. He was disappointed at what he perceived to be a lack of 
helpfulness from Julian Lewis when Mr Goy had contacted him 
directly at East Architects. It was pointed out that Mr Lewis was 
subject to contractual obligations with LBB, and would work only to 
the Council’s directives. Mr Goy also queried the height of the raised 
tables at six junctions. 
 
The Chairman asked if any changes had been made since March 
2015. Mr Munnelly responded that no significant changes had taken 
place except for minor details pertaining to crossing points, and that 
the website would be updated in due course; crossing points would 

Page 2



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 

 

3 
 

be required to be flush with the footways. There would still be kerbs, 
but not changes of levels at crossing points. 
 
Mr Munnelly stated that blind or partially sighted people preferred 
tactile paving which extended up the footway and up to shop 
frontages, and wheelchair users preferred flat surfaces. Design 
teams had been meeting to discuss these issues, and it was noted 
that the crossing points had to comply with modern standards. Dr 
John Parker expressed the view that crossing points should be flush. 
Marsha Berg informed the Group that there had recently been an 
accident near the pharmacy at Village Way and asked if there was 
going to be a redesign at this location.  
 
Mr Chris Cole advised that accidents were recorded, and would be 
available on a digital “Accident Map”.  He promised to forward the 
web link. There had to be a definite reason for any redesign, all of 
the issues concerning the accident having been assessed. The 
Chairman asked why it took so long for accident reports to get to 
LBB. Mr Cole stated that there were various reasons for this. Before 
the report was sent to LBB, the Police would need to complete their 
investigations and send a report to TfL 
 
The Chairman asked Cheryl Curr to explain the work of BID 
companies. The group heard that a “BID” was a Business 
Improvement District that was business-led and business funded 
and which was formed to improve a defined commercial area. The 
benefits of BIDs were wide-ranging: 
 

 Businesses would decide and direct what they wanted for the 
area 

 Businesses were represented and had a voice in issues 
effecting the area 

 BID levy money was ring-fenced for use only in the BID area, 
unlike business rates which were paid to, and redistributed, 
by Government 

 Increased footfall 
 Improved staff retention 
 Business costs reduction 
 Area promotion 
 Facilitated networking opportunities with neighbouring 

businesses 
 Assistance in dealing with the Council, Police and other public 

bodies 
 
Businesses would decide on becoming a BID via a BID ballot. This 
would need to be agreed by 51% of those eligible to vote. There was 
also a rateable value criteria that could impact on the vote. BID 
funding would not affect the statutory responsibilities of the local 
authority. BID companies currently existed in Bromley and 
Orpington. The Bromley BID Company would be launched in April 

Page 3



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 
 

4 

2016. 
 
Mr Goy raised issues concerning value for money, the definition of 
“Term Contractor” and affordability. The Chairman explained that 
there was a distinction between “revenue” money and “capital” 
money. It was the case that LBB was revenue poor but capital rich. 
As this was a capital scheme it was affordable, and was supported 
by the Mayor of London.  Mr Munnelly stated that VFM was key, and 
that a “term” contract was competitively tendered, would be costed 
again at the term rate, and would probably also be costed by TfL. In 
this case there were 2 contractors that had submitted tenders, and 
these were Conway and Lohac.     
 
Mr Stephen Parkin highlighted three issues that he would like to see 
resolved in the final design: 
 

 Buses stopping opposite Tesco Express in Croydon 
Road causing traffic congestion which backed up to the 
roundabout 

 The bus stop and parking bay by Wimpey that caused 
traffic congestion 

 Absence of Loading Bays 
 
Mr Cole gave assurances that these issues were being looked into. 
 
Manda Warner (Creases) asked how information would be 
disseminated to residents and businesses concerning disruption 
caused by forthcoming major works. Mr Munnelly gave assurances 
that a business liaison officer would be appointed to consult with 
local businesses, and there would be a weekly programme of 
updates. There would also be a regular E newsletter and regular 
meetings. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
(1) up to date plans be uploaded to the Bromley Council 
website 
 
(2) Chris Cole would forward a web link for the “Accident Map” 
to the Working Group Clerk who would then disseminate this to 
Group members    
 

27   BECKENHAM GREEN DESIGN UPDATE 
 

 The Beckenham Green Design update was given by Mr Stephen 
Oliver, who distributed a design map for Working Group members’ 
attention. He stated that Beckenham Green was a priority within the 
major scheme. Paving would be laid to the perimeter of the park, 
and trees would be “up lighted” in an attempt to “activate” the space. 

Page 4



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 

 

5 
 

The Design Team were looking at ways to locate infrastructure 
beneath the hard surface in front of the park to service the this area 
for markets. Marie Pender pointed out that the installation of 
infrastructure would also benefit church activities and other 
community events in addition to markets. 
 
A Working Group member asked what infrastructure was being 
considered and Mr Munnelly answered that this would consist of 
electric points and water supply. Janice Pilgrim asked for the planter 
near the crossing points to be removed. Sue Woodward asked if the 
bus stop was staying. Mr Cole answered that it would be staying, but 
that it would be rationalised. He stated that currently the bus cage 
was too long, and that a one-bus cage would be sufficient. Mr 
Munnelly suggested that the illumination of the trees could take 
place in advance of the main development. Mr Goy asked if 
consideration had been applied to providing water drainage which 
would benefit wheelchair users, and Mr Cole responded that this had 
been considered. 
 
Ms Sue Woodward queried what the “bullet like” images on the 
design map were, and it was confirmed that these were granite block 
remnants from installation of the stage. Members agreed that a key 
to the design map would have been useful. Mr Goy commented that 
seating should have backs and arms for comfort, and the Chairman 
stated that he preferred traditional hardwood seating.   
 
RESOLVED that the Beckenham Green Design Update be 
noted.               
 

28   TOWN CENTRE TEAM/TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

 The Town Team Update was given by Marie Pender and Cheryl 
Curr.  
 
It was noted that, concerning the Alley Way Design Project, the 
Town Team was meeting with the designer in the week following the 
meeting. It was anticipated that this work would be completed by 
March 2016. The Group heard that on December 12th 2015, 
Beckenham Town Centre was going to be assessed for the Purple 
Flag award scheme by an independent team of assessors and they 
would meet at the Police Station. The group was provided with an 
explanation of the Purple Flag scheme. 
 
Purple Flag was an accreditation process similar to the Green Flag 
award for parks and the Blue Flag for beaches. It led to Purple Flag 
status for town and city centres that met or surpassed the standards 
of excellence in managing the evening and night time economy 
(ENTE). It incorporated a comprehensive set of standards, 
management processes and good practice examples, all designed 
to help transform, the ENTE. Purple Flag was regarded as a positive 

Page 5



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 
 

6 

initiative that would indicate an entertaining, diverse, safe and 
enjoyable night out.  
 
The assessment of Beckenham Town Centre would take place from 
5.00pm on Saturday December 12th, through till 5.00am on Sunday 
December 13th 2015.  The assessment would not be confined to 
drinking establishments, but would also encompass restaurants, the 
cinema, Beckenham Spa, CCTV operations, and a visit to a recital at 
a local church. Other areas that would be looked at would be the 
work of street pastors and taxi marshals. Data that had to be 
submitted as part of the application included crime statistics and 
hospital admissions within the defined Purple Flag area. 
 
RESOLVED that the Town Team update be noted and that the 
Group be updated in due course concerning the application for 
Purple Flag status.    
 

29   ALBEMARLE ROAD JUNCTION UPDATE 
 

 Mr Cole informed the Group that the previous issue concerning the 
depth of Virgin Media cables had now been resolved, and that Virgin 
had agreed to re-lay the cables. It was clarified that the cables would 
be relaid at a greater depth so that they would not be damaged by 
traffic. It was noted that LBB would be making a contribution for the 
cost of this, but that this was not sizeable. The cost was covered by 
contingency funds, and would not affect the overall scheme budget. 
 
It was expected that HGV’s would be better able to turn left coming 
out of Rectory Road, thus avoiding their use of the High Street. 
 
The Group discussed the timescale for the implementation of the 
works for the Albemarle Road/High Street junction realignment, and 
it was noted that there were two options to consider:  
 
(1) Undertake the junction re-alignment in 8-10 weeks’ time--which 
would be close to Easter 
 
(2)  Undertake the junction re-alignment as part of the Major 
Scheme later in the year. 
 
The Group felt that it would be better to undertake the work as soon 
as possible, and so the first option was agreed. 
 
Mr Munnelly pointed out that it could take 12 weeks for materials to 
arrive, and so action would be taken swiftly. It was also noted that 
satellite navigation companies would need to be contacted and 
advised of changes to the road layout. 
 
RESOLVED that the works for the junction realignment be 
commenced in 8-10 week’s time.     

Page 6



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 

 

7 
 

 

30   WAITROSE CAR PARK ENTRANCE UPDATE 
 

 The update on the Waitrose Car Park entrance junction was 
provided by Chris Cole.  
 
The Group heard that a traffic modelling report had been received 
back from Arcadis. The report looked at the implications of replacing 
the traffic lights at Waitrose with a roundabout. It was noted that if a 
roundabout was built, a pedestrian crossing would still be required, 
and there was likely to be some traffic congestion. 
 
The Chairman liked the idea of the roundabout, and was sceptical 
about it causing more delays than at present. He asked if traffic 
islands could be introduced instead of a pedestrian crossing. Mr 
Cole responded that a controlled crossing was required. Cllr Alan 
Collins asked if the roundabout would mean that traffic would filter 
into one lane, causing delays. He felt that the status quo with traffic 
lights was adequate. 
 
Mr Stephen Parkin was not convinced of the requirement for a 
roundabout and urged caution. The Chairman stated that change 
was required as the present junction arrangement often caused 
gridlock back to Thornton’s Corner in the High Street and back to the 
Brackley Road junction in Southend Road. Marsha Berg suggested 
the idea of a zebra crossing nearby, stating that currently there was 
no crossing to get to the 54 bus stop. 
 
Mr Cole reminded the Group that safety implications were 
paramount. The Chairman asked if Mr Cole could arrange for the 
report from Arcadis to be disseminated to the Group for their 
consideration, and the item placed on the next agenda for 
discussion. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(1) that the traffic modelling report from Arcadis be 
disseminated to the Group for consideration 
 
(2) that the matter be incorporated onto the next agenda for 
further consideration              
 

31   ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION FOR OFFICE USE ALONG THE HIGH 
STREET 
 

 The Group discussed what they regarded as the alarming loss of 
office space due to the Government’s introduction of a new 
permitted development right (PDR) which allowed the conversion of 
office space into residential accommodation without planning 
consent. The Group were very concerned at the number of Class O 

Page 7



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 
 

8 

PDR notices that had already been confirmed, and were anxious to 
do what they could to mitigate future loss of office space. The Group 
were concerned that the PDR would result in a loss of employment 
and business opportunities for Beckenham, and would adversely 
affect the local economy. 
 
Marie Pender commented that the list of applicable buildings 
reported to the meeting which had already obtained Class O PDR 
approvals was not comprehensive, and that it may be the case that 
the situation for Beckenham High Street and surrounding streets 
was much worse than planning officers appreciated.    
 
RESOLVED        
 
(1) that an Article 4 Direction be pursued on a fast track basis to 
protect what office space is left 
 
(2) that LBB be requested to adopt very strong planning 
policies for Beckenham as a business and commercial centre 
 
(3) that LBB be requested to provide confirmation that Class O 
PDR applications would be subject to all relevant planning and 
building regulations, and that these would be fully and 
vigorously applied  
 

32   UPDATE ON BECKENHAM JUNCTION RAILWAY STATION 
 

 It was reported that Network Rail and South Eastern Trains had 
been invited to the meeting but had declined to attend. 
 
The Group examined a document entitled “Beckenham Junction 
Station GRIP 3 Report. This was a report that had been drafted in 
August 2014 by TTPP Construction Consultants for Network Rail. 
The estimated cost of refurbishment works at that time was £1.8m. 
The Group heard that TfL liked the design options, but no decisions 
had yet been made.  
 
Stephen Oliver referred to the design brief—the main issues 
highlighted on the brief by TTPP were: 
 

 A flat roof which would offer benefits in terms of scale in 
relation to the existing building and in terms of costs and 
speed of construction.  

 

 Stock brick had been chosen for the external façade to match 
what was currently present. It was hoped that this would 
complement the original design of the station. A brick cavity 
wall would provide a background for fixing signage and a 
robust facing brick for high impact areas. A cavity wall would 
also minimize temperature extremes within the building. A 

Page 8



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 

 

9 
 

large glazed frontage would assist in creating a more open 
and welcoming entrance to the station.     

 
Mr Oliver stated that the rail company would have to notify the 
Council of their final design intentions, and then the Council would 
have to decide if they would need a Certificate of Planning or if this 
fell within Network Rail’s own powers. 
 
Nick Goy stated that he did not like the way that glass and brick was 
used in the design. However, the Town Centre Team liked the glass 
frontage. Marie Pender queried the status of the document, and Mr 
Oliver stated that it was a scoping document but was not massively 
detailed.  
 
Mr Munnelly suggested that the Group feedback to Network Rail and 
Southeastern Trains, and Mr Oliver stated that further updates would 
follow in due course. A member of the Group asked if the station 
was a listed building and the answer to this was no. It was noted that 
the train station was now located in a town centre Conservation 
Area. 
 
Dr John Parker stated that he was appalled by the proposed design 
for the entrance extension. He did not support the option of a “glass 
box”. He expressed the view that the visual aim for any extension 
should be sympathetic to the character of the existing building, and 
not an “off-the- peg add-on” as per the proposal, with its 1960’s flat 
roof and dominant white fascia image. He felt that a glass enclosure 
was sometimes suitable, but not for Beckenham Junction Station. 
He asserted that the overall design should be modern, functional 
and harmonious with the existing building.  His objection to an all 
glass façade was that it would not be transparent, because as 
planned it would have two small retail units, presumably a coffee 
shop and a news-vendor, each side of the entry doors. With glass 
surrounding walls these units could become an eyesore. He 
expressed concern that hard up against the glass walls would be: 
counters, storage units, display cabinets and racks, with adverts and 
notices probably pasted on the glass.  
 
Dr Parker stated that these problems had occurred with the previous 
news-vendor. Timetables, travel information, etc., could add to visual 
clutter in a very small space.  The inclusion of solid walls would 
contain and hide these items. Therefore the proposal should have a 
profile similar to the existing building, with adequate glazed entries 
and exits, matching brick walls and parapet gutter, with a slated 
pitched and hipped roof. There should be a modest station sign. This 
would be much more appropriate in architectural and conservation 
terms. Other members suggested that the station warranted a full 
restoration to include the restoration of the carriage porch, station 
chimneys and also the brickwork on the railway bridge. It was also 
suggested that rather than using glass and coffee kiosks, the entire 

Page 9



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 
 

10 

Victorian forecourt should be upgraded with suitable Victorian 
cobbles to enhance the buildings. Some Working Group members 
expressed the view that a quality heritage build on the site would 
add interest and visitor numbers to Beckenham. 
 
Mr Alan Old expressed the view that the scheme appeared to place 
more value on creating retail space at the front of the station, rather 
than using this space for passengers and that the original building 
was obscured by the brickwork ‘cheeks’ either side of the entrance. 
He expressed the view that the integrity of the original Victorian 
station building should be preserved by:  
 

 stripping away the relatively recent accretions to the structure 

such as roller shutters, boarded-up windows, ceramic tiles 

wall tiles, suspended ceilings etc. 

 cleaning the brickwork throughout, stripping back the 

paintwork on the window sills, lintels and jambs and 

celebrating the historic details. 

 enlarging the station entrance hall with a simple, glass 

structure that becomes a ‘display case’ for part of the original 

building: accentuating the historic brickwork and decorative 

details of the existing station building within the glass 

enclosure by uplighters set into the floor. 

 not locating two retail units at the front where they will clutter 

the entrance, but instead having one retail unit, situated in the 

existing staff room combining the new staffroom and mess 

room in the existing building at platforms 3 and 4. 

 Manda Warner asked if local businesses would get the 

opportunity to rent retail units at the redesigned station. Mr 

Cole answered that this would normally be subject to a 

tendering process.   

RESOLVED that the Group provide feedback to Network Rail 
and South Eastern Trains, and that updates be presented to the 
Group in due course.   

33   HERITAGE PLAQUES 
 

 Mr Oliver held up an example of a Heritage Plaque. The Chairman 
asked if the Group were happy with the plaque design. A  Working 
Group member remarked that it looked a bit large. The Chairman 
advised that the plaques would be laid into the footways and that 
more information about the point of interest could be included on a 
larger plaque. 

Page 10



Beckenham Town Centre Working Group 
10 December 2015 

 

11 
 

 
Mr Munnelly stated that LBB wanted ownership of the plaques, but 
were keen for the Civic Society to engage. He asked if the Civic 
Society would assist with wording for the plaques, and Mr David 
Wood responded that they would.    
 

34   ANY OTHER BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY NOTIFIED 
 

 No other business was discussed. 
 

35   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 17th March 2016 at 
7.30pm 
 

 
The Meeting ended at 9.30 pm 
 

 
 

Page 11



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 12



1 An email account to be set up to receive feedback concerning the sample paving due to be laid in Kelsey 
Square.            (Kevin Munnelly/Stephen Oliver) 

 

   

2 
 
 

Marie Pender requested a postal address that could be used in addition as not everyone used email.  
                          (Kevin Munnelly/Stephen Oliver)     

3 
 
 

Up to date plans be uploaded to the Bromley Council Website. 
                           (Kevin Munnelly/Stephen Oliver)   

4 Chris Cole to forward a web link for the “Accident Map” to the Working Group Secretary who would then 
disseminate to Group members.   (Chris Cole)   

5 The Group to be updated in due course concerning the application for Purple Flag status. 
                             (Cheryl Curr)   

6 It was resolved that the work required for the Albemarle Road Junction realignment be commenced in 
approximately 8-10 weeks post meeting  (Kevin Munnelly)   

7 Suggested minute amendments received by Nick Goy for the October meeting be examined and actioned 
as required.          (Steve Wood)   

8 Waitrose Car Park Entrance/Arcadis modelling update be included on the March 2016 agenda. 
                                (Steve Wood/Chris Cole)    

9 Resolved that an Article 4 Direction be pursued on a fast track basis to protect what office space is left in 
Beckenham.    

10 Resolved that LBB be requested to adopt very strong planning policies for Beckenham as a business and 
commercial centre.   

11 Resolved that LBB be requested to provide confirmation that Class O PDR applications will be subject to all 
relevant planning and building regulations, and that these will be fully and vigorously applied    

 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 3



This page is left intentionally blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY 
BECKENHAM TOWN CENTRE 
IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Modelling Overview 
 
 
 
DECEMBER 2015 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 

 

Arcadis (UK) Limited is a private limited company registered in England registration number: 1093549. Registered office, Arcadis House, 34 York Way, London, N1 

9AB.  Part of the Arcadis Group of Companies along with other entities in the UK. Regulated by RICS.   

 

Copyright © 2015 Arcadis. All rights reserved.  arcadis.com 

                CONTACTS 
 

 
  DIMA FADDA  

Assistant Engineer- Traffic 
Modelling & Signal Design 

  

  Tel: ++44 (0) 203 014 9127 

Email: dima.fadda@arcadis.com 

  

     

 

Page 16



Page 17



 

 

VERSION CONTROL 

Issue Revision No. Date Issued 
Description of 
Revision: 
Page No. 

Description of 
Revision: 
Comment 

Reviewed by: 

1 0 09/12/2015 1 NA 
Nicolas 

Contentin 

2 1 11/12/2015 1 and 4 
Logo + result 

table 

Nicolas 

Contentin 

3 2 14/12/2015   3 and 4  

Junction Layout 

description + 

Figure 3.1  

 Nicolas  

Contentin  

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

V

Page 18



 

 

CONTENTS 
VERSION CONTROL .......................................................................................................... 3 

1 INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 Background .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Contents of Report ............................................................................................................................... 1 

2 BASE MODEL NETWORK ............................................................................................... 2 

2.1 Model Area ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

2.2 Southend Road – Waitrose Entrance Junction:  Existing Operation ................................................. 3 

3 PROPOSED DESIGN SOUTHEND ROAD – WAITROSE ENTRANCE JUNCTION ....... 3 

4 PROPOSED MODEL ........................................................................................................ 4 

4.1 Proposed Model Assumptions ............................................................................................................. 4 

4.2 Proposed Model Results ...................................................................................................................... 4 

5 CONCLUSION .................................................................................................................. 6 

 
 

APPENDICES 
APPENDIX A 

Pedestrian Flow Data 

 
 
 

Page 19



 

1 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Background  

The London Borough of Bromley (LBB) commissioned Arcadis to undertake a brief 

impact study investigating the replacement of the existing signalised Waitrose junction 

with a mini-roundabout. This work is associated with the proposed Town Centre 

improvements. 

LBB had previously commissioned Arcadis (formerly Hyder Consulting) to test a public 

realm improvement scheme along the High Street and at the A222 Croydon Road – 

Rectory Road roundabout. This assessment was undertaken using VISSIM and LinSig 

modelling software. Both models were Transport for London (TfL) Model Audit Process 

(MAP) compliant, and were fully validated. 

The Base VISSIM models for the AM, PM and Saturday peak period were used to 

assess the conversion of the signalised junction into a mini roundabout. The results are 

presented within this report. 

1.2 Contents of Report 

This report contains the following:  

• Section 2 of the report outlines the base model network, the location of the 

Waitrose junction, and the existing junction operation. 

• Section 3 outlines the proposed design option for the Waitrose Junction. 

• Section 4 of the report details the modelling assumptions, and results of the 

VISSIM model. 

• Section 5 outlines the conclusions. 

 
 

Page 20



 

 

2 

2 BASE MODEL NETWORK 

2.1 Model Area  

 
The base model area is shown in Figure 2.1 below. Nodes included within the base 
VISSIM model are the following: 

• Junction no. 1: Southend Road – Waitrose Entrance; 

• Junction no. 2: Albemarle Road – Rectory Road – Southend Road – High Street; 

• Junction no. 3: High Street – Church Avenue – Bromley Road; 

• Junction no. 4: High Street – Kelsey Park Road – Manor Road – High Street; 

• Junction no. 5: Church Avenue – Mark & Spencer; 

• Junction no. 6: High Street – Burnhill Road; 

• Junction no. 7: High Street – The Drive; 

• Junction no. 8: High Street – A234 Beckenham Road – A222 Croydon Road; 

• Junction no. 9: High Street – A2015 Rectory Road – Blakeney Road; and 

• Junction no. 10: A2015 Rectory Road – Blakeney Road. 

 

 
                                        Figure 2.1 Base Model Area 

 
The proposals involve modifications to Junction number 1, the Southend Road – 
Waitrose Entrance junction.  

 

Page 21



 

 

3 

 

2.2 Southend Road – Waitrose Entrance Junction:  
Existing Operation  

  The Southend Road – Waitrose Entrance junction is a signalised T-junction located 

to the north of Beckenham Town Centre. All three arms are two-way, single 

carriageway movements with a flare to accommodate a left or right turn. The existing 

signals method of control (MOC) is shown in Figure 2.2. There are pedestrian 

crossings on all arms, which operate in an all-round pedestrian stage (Stage 3).  

Figure 2.2 Junction 1 – Southend Road – Waitrose Entrance Existing 
Method of Control 

 

3 PROPOSED DESIGN SOUTHEND ROAD – 
WAITROSE ENTRANCE JUNCTION 

The proposal is to replace the signalised junction with a mini roundabout. There is 
one carriageway on all entrances and exits from the roundabout. 
 
Three Zebra crossings, one on each approach, have been provided to be consistent 
with the existing pedestrian crossing facilities. These pedestrian crossings are 
heavily used and accommodate routes leading to the railway station, which is 
located 20 metres away from the junction.  
 
Adding pedestrian refuge islands were only possible on Southend Road due to the 
width of the road.  It was not possible to fit a refuge island on the Waitrose access 
due to limited road width. The width of the pedestrian refuge islands have been 
designed to design standards to provide safe access to vulnerable road users such 
as wheelchairs and pushchairs. 
 
However, given the location next to Waitrose, the roundabout was designed to 
accommodate HGVs (See figure 3.1 below).  Turning circles were used to inform 
the location of carriageways and kerbs.  In addition, to obtain the correct level of 
deflection, limit potential collisions at this junction and slow down the speed of road 
users, the roundabout has been placed slightly off-centre and a hatched area is 
proposed on the eastern section of the roundabout (green line).  
 
The combination of the pedestrian refuge islands and the HGV turning circles made 
it impossible to have two lanes of traffic on Southend Road due to the width of the 
road at each crossing point. 
 
Arcadis has designed and tested the roundabout shown below in Figure 3.1. 

Page 22



 

 

4 

 

 
 

Figure 3.1 Proposed Junction 1 Southend Road – Waitrose Entrance Proposed Design 

4 PROPOSED MODEL  

4.1 Proposed Model Assumptions  

The proposed modelling is based on the VISSIM MAP (VMAP) Stage 2&3 models for 

Beckenham Town Centre, and was undertaken for the AM peak period (07:45-

09:45hrs), PM peak period (16:30-18:30hrs) and Saturday peak period (11:15-

13:15hrs). Junction 1, Southend Road – Waitrose Entrance, was the only junction 

modified from the base. 

4.2 Proposed Model Results  

A direct comparison between the existing and proposed Average Maximum Queue has 

been summarised in Table 4.1. Figure 4.1 shows the locations of queue counters in the 

VISSIM network. The analysis is limited to Junctions 1 and 2, due to the close proximity 

of these two junctions. 

 
 
 

Page 23



 

 

5 

 

                Table 4.1 Average Maximum Queue Comparison 

 

The results show an increase in the average maximum queues in the proposed 

model when compared to the base model for both junction’s approaches. The 

increases are 37%, 32% and 23% for the AM, PM and Saturday peak periods 

respectively. Furthermore, results show that the queues for the internal reservoir 

between the two junctions will build up significantly on Southend Road northbound. 

The queues in this area are predicted to increase by 251%, 122% and 133% for the 

AM, PM and Saturday peak periods respectively.   

 

Junction number Description
VISSIM detector 

number
Base model

Proposed 

Model
Differnce

1 Waitrose access Eastbound 1 27.10 46.30 19.20

1 Southend road Southbound 2 301.70 465.00 163.30

1 Southend road Northbound 3 95.20 334.10 238.90

2 Southend Road Southbound 4 131.00 125.90 -5.10

2 Albermarle Road Westbound 5 200.70 229.20 28.50

2 High street Northbound 6 140.30 215.20 74.90

2 Rectory Road Eastbound 7 208.10 338.70 130.60

1 Waitrose access Eastbound 1 37.90 54.40 16.50

1 Southend road Southbound 2 339.70 502.60 162.90

1 Southend road Northbound 3 114.60 254.70 140.10

2 Southend Road Southbound 4 124.10 142.00 17.90

2 Albermarle Road Westbound 5 150.10 161.90 11.80

2 High street Northbound 6 178.50 461.80 283.30

2 Rectory Road Eastbound 7 430.00 456.50 26.50

1 Waitrose access Eastbound 1 51.40 113.70 62.30

1 Southend road Southbound 2 492.00 514.50 22.50

1 Southend road Northbound 3 101.40 236.20 134.80

2 Southend Road Southbound 4 134.70 161.20 26.50

2 Albermarle Road Westbound 5 104.20 123.80 19.60

2 High street Northbound 6 173.00 199.00 26.00

2 Rectory Road Eastbound 7 155.70 217.10 61.40

AM 37%

PM 32%

Sat 23%

Saturday

AM

PM

Page 24



 

 

6 

 

 
  

 

5 CONCLUSION 

The modelling results show that converting the existing signalised junction to a 

mini-roundabout will increase the overall queueing on each approach by 37%, 32% 

and 23% for the AM, PM and Saturday peak periods respectively. Furthermore, 

there are particular concerns regarding the internal reservoir between the Waitrose 

Junction and the Rectory Road – High street junction, which will consistently fill up 

on Southend Road northbound during peak hours. The queue in this location is 

predicted to increase by 251%, 122% and 133% for the AM, PM and Saturday peak 

periods respectively. 

 

Figure 4.1 Queue Counter Locations 

Page 25



 

 

7 

APPENDIX A  

 
 

    Pedestrian Flow Data  

Location: Waitrose Junction  

Date: Thursday 17th July 2014, Saturday 19th July 2014  

Hours: 0700-1000; 1600-1900(Thursday), 16:00-19:00 (Saturday).  

  

 

Figure 1 Pedestrians counting locations 

 

 

 

Table 1 Pedestrian Flow_ Waitrose Junction_ AM peak  

 

 

Southend Road

a

A2015

Site A

DVR 53 CH2

DVR 53 CH3

b

c

d

e

fWaitrose

a b c d e f

07:45 2 26 28 07:45 3 39 42 07:45 10 25 35

08:00 2 11 13 08:00 4 32 36 08:00 17 30 47

08:15 7 21 28 08:15 5 23 28 08:15 4 25 29

08:30 31 12 43 08:30 3 22 25 08:30 14 27 41

08:45 10 16 26 08:45 7 10 17 08:45 11 27 38

09:00 4 7 11 09:00 6 15 21 09:00 10 37 47

09:15 9 9 18 09:15 2 15 17 09:15 12 23 35

09:30 1 6 7 09:30 8 12 20 09:30 7 17 24

09:45 6 6 12 09:45 9 10 19 09:45 11 25 36

8:15_9:15 108 91 155

AM Peak

Sum SumSum

Page 26



 

 

8 

 

Table 2 Pedestrian Flow_ Waitrose Junction_ PM peak 

 

 

  
Table 3 Pedestrian Flow_ Waitrose Junction_ Saturday Model 

 

Note that the readings for Movements A and B could not be calculated for the Saturday 

model due to a camera malfunction and caused a loss of footage in the area. Both 

readings have been replaced by the data of C & D of the same day; those readings have 

been considered representative of the crossing.  

 
 
 

16:30 4 15 19 16:30 9 8 17 16:30 31 15 46

16:45 4 6 10 16:45 4 10 14 16:45 16 18 34

17:00 8 2 10 17:00 8 6 14 17:00 25 12 37

17:15 14 3 17 17:15 18 9 27 17:15 46 9 55

17:30 12 1 13 17:30 17 7 24 17:30 38 17 55

17:45 19 6 25 17:45 24 12 36 17:45 40 13 53

18:00 22 13 35 18:00 17 11 28 18:00 28 6 34

18:15 25 2 27 18:15 10 3 13 18:15 15 13 28

18:30 16 4 20 18:30 19 14 33 18:30 32 15 47

17:00_18:00 65 101 200SumSumSum

a b c d e fPM Peak 

Saturday a b c d e f

11:15 0 11:15 3 24 27 11:15 17 26 43

11:30 0 11:30 6 20 26 11:30 24 23 47

11:45 0 11:45 5 11 16 11:45 26 24 50

12:00 0 12:00 9 14 23 12:00 23 32 55

12:15 0 12:15 6 8 14 12:15 19 23 42

12:30 0 12:30 16 9 25 12:30 19 14 33

12:45 0 12:45 18 10 28 12:45 24 31 55

13:00 0 13:00 8 8 16 13:00 33 18 51

13:15 0 13:15 12 5 17 13:15 16 25 41

11:45_12:45 0 78 180SumSum Sum

Page 27



 

 

 
Arcadis (UK) Limited 

Manning House, 22 Carlisle Place 
London 
SW1P 1JA 
United Kingdom 

T: +44 20 3014 9000 

 

arcadis.com 

 

Page 28



Photo of Sample Paving in Kelsey Square 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



This page is left intentionally blank



 Why did Beckenham want the Purple Flag and why does it matter ? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Beckenham has achieved prestigious Purple Flag status following the submission of 
a portfolio and an assessment carried out in December 2015 on a Saturday night, 
between the hours of 17.00.and 03.00 Sunday morning. 
 
The award is similar to that of a Green Flag for a park and recognises excellence in 
the management of the night-time economy. Towns that achieve the status must 
demonstrate that they have a diverse evening offer for visitors. 
 
The assessors and the awarding panel were very impressed with Beckenham. 
During the evening  they visited  and talked to staff at The Spa Leisure Centre , 
Venue 28, the Odeon Cinema, many restaurants and public houses as well as St 
George’s Church to discuss  the programme of events held  there. 
 
The assessors also met with Street Pastors, members of our Street Services Team 
and licenced door staff and  the Police. They also considered arrangements for the 
late night dispersal of visitors.  
 
The assessors were keen to learn about the TfL project and were particularly keen 
on the proposals for lighting  in the High Street and the alleyway project. 
 
The crime figures were presented and showed  a promising downward trend. 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



The Purple Flag status is for two years with an interim review at the end of the first 
year, they will be looking for continuous improvement, so it is important to keep the 
momentum. 
 
The range of key performance indicators include crime statistics, hospital admissions 
during specific time frames that are alcohol related, footfall and business takings. 
 
The assessors highlighted great partnership work--particularly with the involvement 
of the Residents Associations and asked that we write a case study for them on this 
aspect so that it can be posted on the Association of Town and City Management 
Web Site.  
   
The Flag was presented at an awards ceremony in February attended by Members 
of the Purple Flag Working Group and Councillor Peter  Morgan. 
 
The Beckenham Town Centre Team will be considering ways of promoting the 
Purple Flag over the coming year. 
 
  

Page 32


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10th DECEMBER 2015.
	Minutes

	3 SUMMARY OF ACTION POINTS FROM THE MEETING ON 10TH DECEMBER 2015
	4 TRAFFIC UPDATE
	6 MAJOR SCHEME UPDATE
	8 PURPLE FLAG AWARD

